O 0O NOUL B WN -

B DDA DDDDDEDWWWWWWWWWWNNNNNNNNNNRRRPRRERPRRP PR PR
O N D WNROOVLONIOTNTDE WNRPOLOOMNOODUDNWNROWOVOONOGOOUDWNLERO

Town of Charlotte
PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference
July 10, 2025

DRAFT — subject to approval by the Planning Commission

Planning Commission: Matt Krasnow (Chair), Robert Bloch (Vice Chair), Bill Stuono, Ken Smith,
Linda Radimer, Carrie Spear, Ashley Berliner.

Staff: Nate Bareham, Town Administrator, Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary.
OTHERS: Paul Plante, Frank Tenney, Charles Russell, JD Herlihy.

Posted Agenda:

7:00 PM Call to Order

7:01 PM Changes to Agenda (if any); Public Comment (for items not on the agenda)
7:03 PM Review & approve draft PC meeting minutes: June 19 meeting

7:05 PM Review CCRPC’s final draft of the Land Use Regulations

7:30 PM Finalize the Act 250 processes

7:45 PM Discussion of TDRs versus non-contiguous PRDs

8:15 PM Strategy for updating Town Plan

8:55 PM Updates from around Town

9:00 PM Adjourn

Call to Order:
Matt Krasnow called the meeting to order at 7:00p.m.

Changes to Agenda (if any); Public Comment (for items not on the agenda):

Matt added establishing the agenda for the July 24" meeting, and discussion of the possible
appointment of Rebecca Kaplan, Planning and Zoning Assistant, as interim Zoning Administrator for a
period of six months. Matt also noted that review Chittenden Couty Regional Planning Commission
(CCRPC) final draft of the Land Use Regulations (LURs) would be tabled until a clean version is
available.

Review & approve draft PC meeting minutes: June 19 meeting:

MOTION by Robert Bloch; seconded by Linda Radimer, to approve the PC meeting
minutes for June 19, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried. Carrie Spear, Ashley
Berliner abstained.

Finalize the Act 250 processes:

Bill Stuono spoke to the lack of a formal process for notifying the Planning Commission and
Charlotte Conservation Commission (CCC) of Act 250 applications. Matt said that he thought that the
state’s Land Use Review Board is responsible for notifications. Bill agreed that initial notification comes
from the state. Bill asked whoever receives the notification forwards to the Planning Commission, and
CCC Chairs. Nate Bareham, Town Administrator, offered to contact the state’s Land Use Review Board
and update the notifications list.



49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97

page 2 Planning Commission 07/10/2025

MOTION by Linda Radimer; seconded by Robert Bloch, to recess to take an updated
Planning Commission photo. VOTE: 7 ayes, motion carried.

MOTION by Bill Stuono; seconded by Matt Krasnow, to come out of recess. VOTE: 7 ayes,
motion carried.

Discussion of TDRs versus non-contiguous PRDs:

Bill suggested review of Vermont State Statute 24 VSA 4423 Transfer of Development Rights,
which was distributed.

Bill said that in his opinion, transferring development rights via non-contiguous Planned
Residential Development (PRD), is a Transferrable Development Rights (TDR) program, and does not
meet State Statutes. Bill emphasized that State Statutes trump local bylaws. Bill then reviewed 24 VSA
4423 and noted where bylaws are not in compliance.

Matt suggested consultation with the Town’s attorney to determine if LURs pertaining to non-
contiguous PRDs are triggering TDRs. Charles Russell said that question was posed to the Vermont
League of Cities and Towns (VLCT) and the VLCT’s response was distributed to the Planning
Commission.

Bill pointed to a specific question as to whether it is possible to transfer density from a non-
buildable area, such as a wetland. In response, Frank Tenney said that classifying land that is not
buildable as having no density would reduce property value.

Bill noted that when bylaws lack specificity, density can be transferred from one rural area to
another, which is not the intent of a TDR. Charles said a notable difference between PRD and TDR is
that PRDs are to enable flexibility in planning, and TDRs are to encourage development in certain areas.

Charles discussed Jericho’s ordinance for non-contiguous PRDs. Bill asked if Jericho’s
ordinance allows for different ownership of 2 parcels. Charles said that State Statute allows for different
ownership under Planned Unit Development (PUD).

Charles pointed to a process where a landowner can sever development rights, a town mapping
those severed rights, to later distribute as needed.

JD Herlihy said that there is a distinction between 24 VSA 4417 Planned Unit Development and
24 VSA 4423 Transfer of Development Rights. JD noted that 24 VSA 4417 outlines that it may involve
single or multiple properties and one owner or multiple owners. Bill read rationale outlined in 24 VSA
4417 to implement PUDs and suggested that the Development Review Board (DRB) needs guidance to
oversee and again questioned if transferring density from wetlands is appropriate. JD felt that
transferring density from wetlands falls under the conservation rationale in 24 VSA 4417. Bill disagreed
as wetlands are non-buildable. Charles said that Jericho subtracts 25% of the total acreage when
calculating density to account for non-buildable areas, such as wetlands.

Regarding Charlotte’s PRDs, Bill asked if the DRB is tying 2 properties together permanently
and conserving 50% open space. Charles confirmed. Bill said that he does not think that allowing
different ownership in a non-contiguous PRD was the goal when enacted. Bill stated concern for
transferring density to a nonconforming lot that could then be built upon.

Carrie Spear spoke about the benefit of conservation that may result from TDRs. Ken Smith
noted that TDRs are a complicated and subjective process that would benefit from guidelines. Matt
suggested that the pros and cons, what the bylaws enable, and liability be considered.

Bill noted that the maximum density that can be transferred needs to be specified.

Robert Bloch suggested the next steps be determined. Charles suggested a committee be formed
and meet before the next Joint Meeting between the DRB, CCC, and Planning Commission. Bill asked
Charles if an opinion had been obtained from the Town’s attorney. Bill felt that the VLCT attorney’s
response skirted the question. Matt offered to hold a conference call with Nate and the Town’s attorney.
Bill suggested the response be in writing. Subsequent discussion of possible biases and agreement that
opinion should be based on case law.



98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144

page 3 Planning Commission 07/10/2025

Draft PC Agenda for July 24 Meeting:

Ashley Berliner listed review CCRPC’s final draft of the LURs and the Town attorney’s opinion
regarding whether transferring development rights via non-contiguous PRDs, is a TDR program. Robert
added continued discussion of strategy for updating the Town Plan. Matt suggested review of the reports
required to trigger hearings for the agreed upon proposed updates to LURs. Bill added follow-up from
the CCC Co-Chair presentation. Specifically, limiting length of driveways and buildable areas.

Regarding LURs, Charles asked about proposed changes to Thompson’s Point. Matt suggested
swapping out continued discussion of strategy for updating the Town Plan. Nate reported that he had
attended a Thompson’s Point Leaseholder Association meeting. Within that Association, there is
someone with planning experience that offered to consult with the Planning Commission on possible
solutions.

Strategy for updating Town Plan:

Nate spoke to the new Town Planner coming onboard as that pertains to the continued discussion
of strategy for updating the Town Plan. Robert suggested that the updated Town Plan has action items
and accountability and an inventory be taken by each board of what has been accomplished from the
current Town Plan.

Frank pointed out that re-adoption of the current Town Plan is an option and that amendments
can be made at any point in time. Bill agreed with the possibility of re-adoption and favored the focus on
proposed changes to LURs before updating the Town Plan.

Nate suggested that statutory requirements be included in the Town Plan update. The CCRPC
will outline these.

Building on Robert’s suggestion for an inventory of what has been accomplished, Matt proposed
that each board bring to the Planning Commission input on required updates. Ashley asked how this
request would be made. Matt will draft an email for review at the next meeting.

Nate suggested updated mapping be incorporated in the update as appendices.

Bill asked about the contract with the CCRPC to assist with the Town Plan update and if that is
necessary with the Town Planner coming onboard. Nate explained that there will be collaboration
between the CCRPC and the new Town Planner. Specifically, to aid with software and program updates.

Interim Zoning Administrator appointment:

MOTION by Matt Krasnow; seconded by Robert Bloch, in accordance with 24 VSA
4448(a), to recommend the appointment of Rebecca Kaplan as the interim Zoning Administrator
for the town. VOTE: 7 ayes, motion carried.

Bill noted that towns the size of Charlotte typically have 2, not 3, planning and zoning staff and
suggested a future discussion of this. Matt proposed this be discussed during a Selectboard meeting.
Nate said that this be discussed outside of an open meeting. Bill suggested an Executive session between
the Planning Commission and Selectboard to discuss this.

Updates from around Town:

Linda Radimer commented on the appearance of the new bridge on Spear Street. Bill asked if
funding for the new bridge had been received. Nate confirmed.

Bill asked Nate if he had any Selectboard related updates. Nate said the Energy Committee is
working on some energy modernization projects, and there has been some discussion of capital spending
coming up for the next budget season. In response to this, Robert noted that the current Town Plan
outlines the Planning Commission’s role in capital planning.



145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158

page 4 Planning Commission 07/10/2025

Bill asked Nate about the Town’s paving budget. Nate answered that there was a slight deviation
due to paving on Spear Street. Charles reported that paving is budgeted for 3 miles per year, down from
6 miles due to increase in asphalt.

Bill asked Nate about federal funds being withheld and if that is trickling down to impact any of
Charlotte’s organizations. Nate responded that this has not occurred.

Bill asked for an update on the Recreation Director position. Nate said that Gary Robbins had
been hired as the Recreation Director.

Adjourn:
MOTION by Robert Bloch; seconded by Linda Radimer, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE: 7
ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 8:59p.m.

Minutes respectfully submitted:
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary, with edits by Rebecca Kaplan, Planning and Zoning Assistant.




